
POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 
  WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485‐9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

** AMENDED ** AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Thursday, May 9, 2019 at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

1 Subject Matters added/struck by Amended Notice of Meeting 

 
 

Materials: April 11, 2019 Minutes, Resolution No. 22-19 draft 
1. Call to order –Chair Masters 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019 
4. Public Comment (3 minutes) 
5. Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members  
6. 1Report/Presentation by Polk County Tourism Council 
7. Discussion Regarding Laptop Computer Use and Follow up Regarding Audio 

Visual Recording and Broadcasting of Meetings  
8. Report and Discussion Regarding Possibility of Changing Boardroom to West 

Conference Room  
9. Report/Update Regarding Cedar Corporation Analysis of Fairgrounds  
10. Discussion and Consideration of Resolution No. 22-19 Adopting the Division 

Structure Implementation  
11. Discussion Regarding Strategic Planning 
12. Discussion and Identification of Priorities  
13. Discussion Regarding Items Noted on  2017 Work Plan 

 Government Center Security 
 Paper Reduction – Paperless Initiative 
 Cash Handling 
 Accounts Receivable 
 Review Lease Structure 
 Customer Service 
 Funding Outside Agencies 
 Capital Improvement Planning 
 IT Developments and Innovation 
 Employment Issues and Trends/Succession Planning 

 
14. ** Recommendation on Offer of Public Administration Associates to Settle 

Asserted and Anticipated Claim for Compensatory Damages – Discussion and 
Recommendation 

Closed Session: 
The Committee may convene in closed session on matters noticed under #14, 
as follows: 
   



2 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(g), the Committee may    
convene in closed session to receive a legal opinion concerning litigation 
strategy  that the committee may recommend to the County Board for 
adoption concerning anticipated litigation and to receive a legal opinion 
concerning the offer of Public Administration Associates to settle its 
asserted and anticipated claim against the County that the committee may 
adopt in making its recommendation to the Board on said offer and on 
litigation strategy relative to said claim.     
 
Following the closed session, the committee will convene in open session 
to take up for consideration and recommendation or action matters 
noticed for open session or closed session herein.  

   
15. 2019 Work Plan Development/Updates 
16. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
17. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to 
attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715‐485‐9226) at least 24 hours in advance 
of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 
 
 

     



POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 
  WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485‐9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Thursday, May 9, 2019 at 10:00 a.m.  
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 

Materials: April 11, 2019 Minutes, Resolution No. 22-19 draft 
1. Call to order –Chair Masters 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019 
4. Public Comment (3 minutes) 
5. Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members  
6. Report/Presentation by Polk County Tourism Council 
7. Discussion Regarding Laptop Computer Use and Follow up Regarding Audio 

Visual Recording and Broadcasting of Meetings  
8. Report and Discussion Regarding Possibility of Changing Boardroom to West 

Conference Room  
9. Report/Update Regarding Cedar Corporation Analysis of Fairgrounds  
10. Discussion and Consideration of Resolution No. 22-19 Adopting the Division 

Structure Implementation  
11. Discussion Regarding Strategic Planning 
12. Discussion and Identification of Priorities  
13. Discussion Regarding Items Noted on  2017 Work Plan 

 Government Center Security 
 Paper Reduction – Paperless Initiative 
 Cash Handling 
 Accounts Receivable 
 Review Lease Structure 
 Customer Service 
 Funding Outside Agencies 
 Capital Improvement Planning 
 IT Developments and Innovation 
 Employment Issues and Trends/Succession Planning 

 
14. ** Recommendation on Offer of Public Administration Associates to Settle 

Asserted and Anticipated Claim for Compensatory Damages – Discussion and 
Recommendation 

Closed Session: 
The Committee may convene in closed session on matters noticed under #14, 
as follows: 
   

     Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(g), the Committee may    
convene in closed session to receive a legal opinion concerning litigation 



2 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

strategy  that the committee may recommend to the County Board for 
adoption concerning anticipated litigation and to receive a legal opinion 
concerning the offer of Public Administration Associates to settle its 
asserted and anticipated claim against the County that the committee may 
adopt in making its recommendation to the Board on said offer and on 
litigation strategy relative to said claim.     
 
Following the closed session, the committee will convene in open session 
to take up for consideration and recommendation or action matters 
noticed for open session or closed session herein.  

   
15. 2019 Work Plan Development/Updates 
16. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
17. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to 
attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715‐485‐9226) at least 24 hours in advance 
of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 
 
 

     



1 
 

                                                   MINUTES 

                           General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                10:00 a.m. Thursday, April 11, 2019 
 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters @ 10:00 a.m. 
Members present: 
 

Attendee Name  Title  Status 

Brian Masters  Chair  Present 

Russ Arcand  Vice Chair  Present 

Dean Johansen  Supervisor  Present 

Larry Jepsen  Supervisor  Present 

Chris Nelson  Supervisor  Present 

     

Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Nick Osborne, County Administrator; Andrea Jerrick, 
Deputy County Administrator/Employee Relations Director; Steve Geiger, Interim Land Information 
Director; David Vollendorf, Interim Information Technology Director; Emil Norby, Highway 
Commissioner; Supervisor Mike Prichard, and members of the public.   
                                                                       
Approval of Agenda  
Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the agenda as published. Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to 
approve agenda. Chair Masters declared that Item #16: Updates Regarding Big Butternut Lake Dam 
would be struck from the agenda‐ closed session will not be held. Chair Masters called for a voice vote 
on said motion to approve the agenda with said changes. Motion to approve the agenda carried by 
unanimous voice vote.   
   
Approval of Minutes   
Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the minutes of the March 14, 2019 meeting as published. 
Motion (Jepsen/Masters) to approve the minutes. Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. 
Motion to approve the minutes of the March 14, 2019 meeting carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment ‐ No Public comment was received by committee. 

Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members – Information was 
received from Supervisor Johansen regarding implementing a committee report form for use at the 
County Board meetings.   

Committee received follow‐up information from Interim IT Director Dave Vollendorf regarding 
audiovisual recording and broadcasting of meetings. An employee that works for the Highway 
Department has expressed interest in recording the meetings. The Sheriff’s Department has a video 
camera available for use. A possible trial run is planned for the May County Board meeting.   

Committee received a follow‐up report and findings from Administrator Osborne regarding DNR 
exemption and future expenses in regard to trails. An outside attorney opinion indicated pay back of 
federal funding would be likely. The County has reached out to Congressman Duffy’s office to try to get 
an accurate payback figure from the State. 

  



2 
 

 

 

Committee received a report and information regarding development of the new Fairgrounds 
Management Agreement (Memorandum of Understanding) from Highway Commissioner Norby. 
Corporation Counsel and Commissioner Norby are developing the updated Memorandum of 
Understanding.  

The Committee received an update regarding the fairgrounds analysis. A recent meeting with Cedar 
Corporation and the Fair Society discussed the scope of the project, with follow‐up meetings on 4/24/19 
to obtain input from various fair groups and determine scope of analysis of fairground facilities. 
Completion of the fairgrounds analysis is expected by sometime in July.  

Committee received information and updates regarding the Greenway Property from Administrator 
Osborne. Greenway is currently in receivership. Purchase of the property is under consideration by the 
Village of Turtle Lake. 

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding costing of fees for services 
charged to outside agencies and the process of how fees are determined annually. 

The committee discussed recommendations regarding reconsideration of Resolution No. 18‐19: 

Resolution to Adopt the Polk County Plan for Library Service 2019 – 2024.  Chairman Masters called 

upon John Thompson, Representative from Indianhead Federated Library System to provide information 

regarding the Plan for Library Service for 2019 to 2024 to the committee. Committee received 

information regarding the 2019 to 2024 Plan for Library Service from Supervisor Prichard.  

Chair Masters called for a motion regarding Resolution No. 18‐19 

Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to recommend Resolution No. 18‐19 to the County Board for passage. 

Chair Masters called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to recommend Resolution No. 18‐19 to the 

County Board for passage carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding Rules of Order, committee 

duties, responsibilities and assigned functions. A resolution addressing amendments to the Rules of 

Order will be addressed by the Executive Committee and moved to County Board meeting for 

consideration. 

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding the committee agenda process 

and specific deadlines for submitting agenda items. A reminder for agenda items will go out on Friday 

(three days before the agenda deadline). Committee agenda items should be submitted as early as 

possible or on Wednesday by noon a week before the scheduled meeting. Committee Chairs will have a 

role in finalizing the agenda. 

Committee received information from Administrator Osborne regarding the proposal from Renewable 

World Energies for the Clam Falls Dam. Polk County received an offer in writing from Renewable World 

Energies regarding the Clam Falls Dam. Administrator Osborne reported concerns the Environmental 



3 
 

Services Committee has regarding the sequence of the Renewable World Energies offer, believing that 

the stability study of the Clam Falls Dam should be completed before Polk County would consider any 

ownership of the dam. General Government committee requested that a Committee of the Whole 

discussion be held regarding the Clam Falls Dam at the May Board of Supervisors meeting. 

Committee received information from Chair Masters regarding discussion with Mayor Carlson relating to 

the Tourism Council and Memorandum of Understanding with City of St Croix Falls. 

Working Session to Develop 2019 Committee Work Plan:  

Pending items:  Lime Quarry Analysis – June 

Add items remaining from 2017 work plan to 2019 Work Plan  

Items for next agenda:   

Next meeting: May 9, 2019 @ 10:00 a.m.  

Laptop/IT Discussion and Videoing of Board meetings 

Strategic Planning 

Work plan 

Items from 2017 Work Plan 

Report/discussion regarding possibility of changing boardroom to West Conference Room 

 

Adjourn 

 

Chair Masters called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Arcand/Nelson) to adjourn. Chair Masters called 
for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. Meeting adjourned 
11:41a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

Sharon Jorgenson 

County Clerk  

 

 

 



 

1 
 

Resolution No. 22-19 1 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE DIVISION STRUCTURE IMPLEMENTATION 2 
PLAN 3 

 4 
TO THE HONORABLE SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF 5 
POLK: 6 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 7 
 
WHEREAS, as part of Resolution 48-15, the Polk County Board of Supervisors adopted 8 
reorganizational provisions creating the Community Services Division for purposes of 9 
delivering the consolidated departments’ services on a coordinated and integrated basis; 10 
and, 11 

 12 
WHEREAS, the Polk County Board of Supervisors furthered the division concept 13 
by adopting Resolution 80-18 creating the Land Use Division, Highway and 14 
Facilities Division, and General Government Services Division; and, 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, implementation of the Community Services Division concept has yielded 17 
changes to organizational structures and nomenclature requiring clean-up of the original 18 
organizational model; and, 19 
 20 
WHEREAS, Resolution 80-18 requires the County Administrator to develop and present 21 
for recommendation and approval the proposed organizational structures, division 22 
budgets, and staffing plans consistent with the organizational concept outlined in said 23 
resolution. 24 

 25 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of Supervisors 26 
authorizes and approves Division Structure Implementation Plan for addressing 27 
organizational structures, division budgets, and staffing plans as attached hereto and 28 
incorporated herein. 29 
 
BY: ____________________________   ____________________________ 

Brad Olson, Supervisor, District #1    James Edgell, Supervisor, District #8 
____________________________     ____________________________ 
Doug Route, Supervisor, District #2    Kim O’Connell, Supervisor, District #9 
____________________________     ____________________________ 
Dean Johansen, Chair,                     Larry Jepsen, Supervisor, District #10 
Supervisor, District #3,        
____________________________     ____________________________   
Chris Nelson, Supervisor, District #4    Jay Luke, 1st Vice Chair, 
            Supervisor, District #11 
____________________________     ____________________________ 
Tracy LaBlanc, Supervisor, District #5    Michael Larsen, Supervisor, District #12 
____________________________     ____________________________ 
Brian Masters, Supervisor, District #6    Russell Arcand, Supervisor, District #13 



 

2 
 

____________________________     ____________________________ 
       Michael Prichard, Supervisor, District #7   John Bonneprise, 2nd Vice Chair,  

Supervisor, District #14       
     

_______________________________   
            Joe Demulling, Supervisor, District #15 

County Administrator’s Note: 
    
 
_____________________________   
Nick Osborne 
County Administrator 
 
Fiscal Impact Note:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Maggie Wickre, Finance Director 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Execution: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Malia T. Malone, Corporation Counsel 
 
Legal Impact Note:    
 

 

Excerpt of Minutes 
 
At its regular business meeting on the ____of _________ 2019, the Polk County Board of 30 
Supervisors acted upon Resolution No. 22-19: Resolution 31 
____________________________________________________________________32 
____________________________________________________________________ 33 

 
 

 Adopted by a majority of the members present by a vote of ________ in 
favor and ________ against. 

 Adopted by unanimous voice vote.  
 Adopted as amended.  See Below. 
 Defeated  
 Other: ________________________________________________________  

 
 
 
 
SIGNED BY:     ATTEST: 

Insert amendment to resolution according to minutes:  



 

3 
 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Dean Johansen, County Board Chairperson         Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
 
 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
As part of the resolution adopting the 2016 Polk County operating budget, the County Board 
authorized the creation of the County’s first “Division” model department group.  
Subsequently, in fall of 2018, the County Board adopted a Division concept model grouping 
departments within the Environmental Services function, the Highway and Facilities 
functions, and the General Government function.  This resolution, along with the original 
language authorizing the Community Services Division, called for iterations of planning 
around the structural, budgetary, and personnel aspects of the division concept. 
 
This resolution adopts the plan for rounding out the completion of the division concept.  The 
first phase of this plan addresses items in progress from the Community Services Division 
implementation as well as initial formative concepts around the Environmental Services, 
Highway and Facilities (Public Works) and General Government Divisions.  These concepts 
include general allocation of functions, formalization of various terminology, addresses 
specific titles, authority, and compensation, and lays out next steps in the division concept 
development process. 
 
The incorporated addendum identifies and delineates the specific items to be addressed as 
well as the aforementioned plan for next steps to be taken in tandem with the 2020 budget 
process. 



 

Addendum to Resolution 22‐19 Adopting the Division Structure Implementation Plan        1 | P a g e  

DIVISION STRUCTURE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
PHASE ONE: 

 

ELEMENT ONE: FINALIZATION OF COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION 

 

 

ELEMENT TWO:  CLARIFICATION OF DIVISION TITLES FOR LAND USE PROGRAMS, HIGHWAY AND FACILITIES PROGRAMS, AND 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT PROGRAMS 

 The designated Land Use Division shall be renamed the Environmental Services Division; and, 

 The designated Highway and Facilities Division shall be renamed the Public Works Division; and, 

 The General Government Division shall remain as titled. 

 



 

Addendum to Resolution 22‐19 Adopting the Division Structure Implementation Plan        2 | P a g e  

ELEMENT THREE:  ASSIGNMENT OF PROGRAM OVERSIGHT AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE FOR REMAINDER OF 2019 FOR 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION, PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION, AND GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 

The following organizational charts are structured so as to provide for general guidance and direction in assignment of programs to a functional 

area.  This structure will be subject to modification and finalization in Phase Two of this plan. 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION 

 

 

 



 

Addendum to Resolution 22‐19 Adopting the Division Structure Implementation Plan        3 | P a g e  

GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 

 

 

ELEMENT FOUR:  DUTIES, COMPENSATION, AND APPOINTMENT OF ASSIGNED DIVISION HEADS 

The County Administrator has reviewed the position structure, scope and compensation for all Divisions based on both internal and external 

labor market comparability and is issuing the following recommendations for consideration: 

 Effective October 17, 2018, the Interim Land Information Director shall receive an additional 5% compensation for additional Land Use 

Division program oversight duties assigned through Resolution 80‐18. 

 Effective October 17, 2018, the Highway Commissioner shall receive an additional 5% compensation for additional Highway and Facilities 

Division program oversight duties assigned through Resolution 80‐18. 

 Effective upon passage of the resolution adopting this plan, the Highway Commissioner shall assume the official appointment as the 

Public Works Director, assuming the title of “Public Works Director – Highway Commissioner,” continuing at the rate of pay in effect as 

of adoption of this plan.  The anniversary date of the incumbent shall remain as presently in effect. 

 Effective upon passage of the resolution adopting this plan, the Deputy County Administrator shall assume the official appointment as 

the General Government Division Director continuing at the rate of pay in effect as of adoption of this plan.  The anniversary date of the 

incumbent shall remain as presently in effect. 

 No changes are recommended for the Community Services Division Director position or compensation. 



 

Addendum to Resolution 22‐19 Adopting the Division Structure Implementation Plan        4 | P a g e  

 Effective upon passage of the resolution adopting this plan, the County Administrator is authorized to recruit for the renamed position 

of Environmental Services Division Director. 

 Effective upon passage of the resolution adopting this plan, the Public Works Director – Highway Commissioner is authorized to recruit 

for the reclassified position of Facilities Manager. 

PHASE TWO: 

ELEMENT ONE:  DEVELOPMENT OF FINAL ORGANIZATIONAL CHART AND BUDGET AND STAFFING PLAN STRUCTURE 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

In the 2020 budget process, the County Administrator will work with key stakeholders within each functional area to finalize the Environmental 

Services, Public Works, and General Government Division’s organizational structures and develop financial and personnel recommendations for 

the 2020 budget. 



 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

2019 WORK PLAN 

Date  Scheduled Agenda Items  Program Evaluation and Upcoming 

Issues 

January  Finalize 2019 Work Plan   

February     

March     

April     

May    Consideration of County Board priorities 

in General Government 

June  Financial Analysis Lime Quarry 

Financial Analysis – Recycling Center 

 

July  Annual reports 

Annual Audit Results 

Governor’s Budget and impact on 

government programs 

August  Review and recommendations on fee 

schedule 

 

September  Annual budget review – County Board 

Budget development/recommendation 

 

October  Annual budget and budget amendment 

recommendations 

 

November  Budget technical amendments   

December  Develop 2020 work plan   

 

Issues noted on 2017 Work Plan addendum:   

Review Lease Structure        Capital Improvement Planning 
Paper Reduction        IT Developments and Innovation 
Government Center Security      Accounts Receivable 
Customer Service        Succession Planning   
Cash Handling          Employment Issues and trends 



 

Funding outside agencies 


	Gen Government Agenda 5-9-2019 Amended
	Gen Government May Agenda Packet
	Gen Government Agenda 5-9-2019
	Gen Gov Minutes 4-11-19
	Res 22-19 Division Structure May mtg
	Res 22-19 Addendum  May MTG- Division Structure Implementation Plan
	Work Plan Gen Gov 2019


